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Our passion is to attain a distinctive
leadership amongst the corporate success
stories of tomorrow. We at NAL recognize
that the realization of this passion needs
superior professional competencies,
continuous value addition and improvising,
development of human capital and complete
cormmmitmerit lo safety, accupational health
and environment.




Mission

To remain the premium and
preferred supply source for
various petroleum products
and petrochemicals.

Offer products that are not only viable in
terms of desirability and price but most
important give true and lasting value to
our customers,

Deliver strong returns on existing and
projected investment of our stakeholders
by use of specialized and high quality
corporate capabilities.

Business development by adoption

of emerging technologies, growth in
professional competence, support to
innovation, Enrichment of human
resource and performance recognition.

Be a responsible corporate citizen by
serving the community through a variety
of socio-economic acts and maintaining
a high level of safety, occupational heaith
and environmental care.
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Core Values

Qur success will not be a matter of chance, but of
commitment to the foilowing enduring beliefs and values
that are engrained in the way we think and take actions to
pursue a climate of excellence:




Integrity and Ethics
Integrity, honesty, high ethical, legal and safe standards are cormnerstone of
our business practices.

Quality
We pursue quality as a way of life. It is an atfitude that affects everything
we do for relentiess pursuit of excellence.

Social Responsibility

We believe in respect for the community and preserving the environment
for our future generations and keeping National interests paramount in all
our actions.

Learning and Innovation

We embrace lifelong leaming and innovation as an essential catalyst for
our future success. We believe in continuous improvement and to seize
opportunities inherent in change to shape the future.

Teamwork

We believe that competent and salisfied people are the company's heart,
muscle and soul. We savour fiashes of genius in organisation's life by
reinforcing attitude of teamwork and knowledge sharing based on mutual
respect, trust and openness,

Empowerment

We flourish under an ecosystem, of shared understanding founded on the
concept of empowerment, accountability and open communication in all
directions.

National Refinery Limited |
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NRL at a glance

First Lube Refinery

Design capacity
Design capacity
Date Commissioned
Project Cost

Fuel Refinery

Before Re-Vamp
Design capacity
Date Commissioned
Project Cost

After Re-Vamp

Design capacity

Date Commissioned
Project Cost of Revamping

BTX Unit

Design capacity
Date Commissioned
Project Cost

Second Lube Refinery

Before Re-Vamp
Design capacity
Date Commissioned
Project Cost

After Re-Vamp

Design capacity

Date Commissioned
Project Cost of Revamping

Shareholders' Equity
June 1966
June 2009

539,700 Tons per year of Crude processing
76,200 Tons of Lube Baze Qils

June 1966
103.9 Million Rupees

1,500,800 Tons per year of Crude processing

April 1977
607.5 Million Rupees

2,170,800 Tons per year of Crude processing
February 1990
125.0 Million Rupees

25,000 Tons per year of BTX

April 1979
66.7 Million Rupees

100,000 Tons per year of Lube Base Oils
January 1985
2,082.4 Million Rupees

115,000 Tons per year of Lube Base Qils
June 2008
585.0 Miilion Rupees

20.0 Million Rupees
17, 352.74 Million Rupees
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Objectives & Development Strategy

National Refinery Limited is a petroleum
refining and petrochemical complex engaged
in manufacturing and supplying a wide range
of fuel products, lubes, BTX, asphalts and
specialty products for domestic consumption
and export.

NRL objectives and development strategy are aimed at
achieving sustainable productivity and profitability and
high standards of safety, occupational health and
environmental care, This entails human resource
re-engineering & development, enhancing value
addition, implementing conservation measures and
continuing growth through upgradation of existing as
well as addition of new facilities. In the changing giobal
environment, corporate objectives and development
strategy have been defined to meet the challenges of
21st cenlury.




Corporate Objectives

Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals.
Contribute in meeting the Country's demand of petroleum and petrochemical
products.

Customer's satisfaction by providing best value and quality product.

Optimization of the value of barrel of crude oil and cost reduction through
conservation measures.

Achieving and maintaining a high standard of Occupational Health, Safety and
Environment.

Ensure reasonable return on the shareholders' existing and projected investment.
Maintain modern management system conforming 1o international standards
needed for an efficient organization.

Development Strategy

Contribute in national efforts towards aftaining sustainable self-efficiency in
petroleum products.

Human resource development by upgrading training facilities and exposure 10
modern technologies / management techniques.

Balancing and modernization for energy conservation and enhanced yield of value
added products as well as revamping for environment friendly products.

Expansion of refining capacity by debottlenecking and adding new facilities.

Acquire newer generation technologies for the efficient refinery operations as well as
for attaining highest standards of Occupational Health, Safety and Environment.
Acquiring self-sufficiency in re-engineering, design and fabrication of equipments.

National Refinery Limited | 10
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National Refinery Limited is engaged in the manufacturing of wide range of
petroleum products with the objective to achieve sustainable productivity,
profitability and high standards of safety, occupational health and environmental
care. This entails human resource development, enhancing value addition,
implementing conservation measures and growth by up-gradation and addition of
newer generation technologies. The Company solemnly believes in the application
of business ethics as have been embodied in this document.

* The credibility, goodwill and repute earned over the years can be maintained
through continued conviction in our corporate values of honesty, justice, integrity
and respect for people. The Company strongly promotes trust, openness,
teamwork and professionalism in its entire business activities.

* The business principles are derived from the above stated corporate values and
are applied to all facets of business through well-established procedures. These
procedures define behavior expected from each employee in the discharge of
his/her responsibility.

* NRL recognizes following obligations, which need to be discharged with best
efforts, commitment and efliciency:

- Safeguarding of shareholders' interest and a suitable return on equity.

- Service customers by providing products, which offer value in terms of price,
quality, safety and environmental impact.

- Respect human rights, provide congenial working environment, offer competitive
terms of employment, develop human resource and be an equal opportunity
employer.

- Seek mutually oeneficial business relationship with contractors, suppliers and
investment partners,

» The Company believes that profit is essential for business survival. It is a measure
of efficiency and the value that the customer places on products and services

produced by the Company.
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» The Company reduires honesty and fairness in all aspect of its business and in its
relationshipa with all those with whom it does business. The direct or indirect offer,
payment, soliciting and accepting of bribe in any form are undesirable.

» The Company requires all its employees to essentially avoid conflict of interest
between private financial activities and their professional role in the conduct of
Company business.

* The Company is fully committed to reliability and accuracy of financial statements and
transparency of transactions in accordance with established procedures and
practices.

¢« The Company does not support any political party or contributes funds to groups
having political interests. The Company will however, promote its legitimate business
interests through trade associations.

* The Company, consistent with its commitments to sustainable developments, has a
systematic approach to the management of health, safety and environment.

¢ The Company is committed to observe laws of Pakistan and is fully aware of its social
responsibility. It would assist the community in activities such as educaticn, sports,
environment preservation, training programs, skills development and employment
within the parameters of its commercial objectives.

¢ The Company supports free market system. It seeks to compete fairly and ethically
within the framework of applicable competition laws in the country. The Company will
not stop others from competing freely with it.

» In view of the critical importance of its business and impact on national economy, the
Company provides all relevant information about its activities to legitimate interested
parties, subject to any overriding constraints of confidentiality and cost.

On Behalf of the Board

Shuaib A. Malik
Deputy Chairman /
19th August 2009 Chief Executive Officer




Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Forty Sixth (46th) Annual General
Meeting of National Refinery Limited will be held on Monday, October
19, 2009 at 1600 hours at Hotel Sheraton, Karachi to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and approve the Audited Accounts of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2009 together with the
Directors' Report and the Auditors' Report thereon.

2. To consider and, if thought fit, to approve the payment of Final Cash
Dividend at the rate of Rs. 12.50 per share i.e. 125% for the year
ended June 30, 2009 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To appoint Company's auditors for the year ending June 30, 2010 and
to fix their remuneration.

4. To elect seven (7) Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 178 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 for a term of three (3) years commencing from
October 21, 2009. The names of the retiring directors are:

1. Dr. Ghaith R. Pharaon
2. Mr. Laith G. Pharaon

3. Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

4. Mr. Shuaib Anwer Malik
5. Mr. Abdus Sattar

6. Mr. Firasat Al

7. Mr. Tarik Kivanc

National Refinery Limited | 14
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SPECIAL BusmEss “;.

To approve and adbp,t 4 new set of Articles of Association and for this purpose to pass
lge lollaw:ng reselution asa Speclal Resolution:

'HESOLVED THAT the regulanons contained in the printed document submitted to this
meeting, and for the purposes of idenlification subscribed by the Chairman hereof, be
approved and adopted as the Articles of Association of the Company, in substitution for,
and to the exciusion of, all the existing Arlicles thereof."

Statements of material facts under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
pertaining to the Special Business referred above under agenda item 5 are annexed to
this Notice of Meeting being sent to the members.

By Order of the Board
/-

Karachi: S her Ahmed
Dated: September 28, 2009 Company Secretary




NOTES:

1. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be
accepted for registration from Saturday, October 10, 2009 to Monday, October 19, 2009 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Share Registrar:

Nobie Computer Services (Pwi.) Lid.,
Mezzanine Floor,

House of Habib Building (Siddigsons Tower),
3~Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75350

at the close of business on Friday, October 09, 2009 will be in time for the purpose of
determination of entitlement to the transferees.

2. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitied to
appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. No person shall act as proxy, who
is not a member of the Company except corporate entity may appoint a person who is not a
member. Proxy in order to be effective must be duly signed, witnessed and deposited at the
office of the Share Registrar not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

3. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

4. Shareholders are requested to promptly notify the office of the Share Registrar of any change
in their address.

5. Members who may be seeking exemption from the deduction of income tax or are eligible for
deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid fax certificate or necessary
documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also
requested to submit a declaration for non-deduction of zakat. Necessary advice in either case
must be submitted within not more than 15 days from the date of dividend entitlement.

6. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securilies and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

A. For attending the meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securilies are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original Computerised National
Identity Card, {CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

(i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Direclors' resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signalure of the nominee shall be produced {unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

National Refinery Limited | 16
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B. For appoinling proxies:

(i) Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account, and their registration details are upioaded
as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

(i) Attested copies of CNIC -or the passport, of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv} The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport al the time of the
Meeling.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of aftorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with proxy form to the Company.

7. Election

(i The number of Directors to be elected at the Annual General Meeting has been fixed
by the Board of Directors at seven (7) under section 178 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984.

(ii) AM directors shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

(i} Nomination / Notice of intention 1o offer himself as a director shall be filed with the
Registered Office, 7-B, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, by a candidale not later
than fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting at which elections are to be
held.

(iv) Form 28 (consent to Act as Director) prescribed under the Companies Ordinance
1984,

(v} A Declaration with Consent to act as Director in the prescribed form under clause (ii)
of the Code of Corporale Governance to the effect that he is aware of duties and
powers of Directors as mentioned in the Companies Ordinance 1984, the
Memorandum and Arlicles of the Company and the Lisling Hegulations of the Karachi
{ Lahore / Islamabad Stock Exchanges and has read the relevant provisions
contained therein; and

¥ ol
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(vii A Declaration in terms of clause (ii) and (iv) of the Code of Corporate
Governance to the effect that he is not serving as a Director in more than 10 listed
companies, and he/she is a registered National Tax nger (except where he/she
is a non-resident), that he/she has not been convicted by a court of competent
jurisdiction as defauiter in payment of any loan to a banking com[:)agy, a
development financial institution or a non-banking financial institution; that he/she
or their spouse are not en%aged_ in the business of Stock Brokerage (unless
specifically exempted by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan).

B. Form of proxy is attached to the notice of meeting being sent to the members.

Statement of Material Facts : .
Statement under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance 1584

The material facts concerning the special businesses to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company o be held on Monday, October 19, 2008.

Alteration in the Articles of Association of the Company:

The Board of Directors of the ComPany has recommended that the Company's articles of
association be substituted for, and 1o the éxclusion, of all the existing articles by a new set
of articles of association. The new set of the articles of associalion updates the pany's
existing Articles of Association by takm?_ into account the several changes made in the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 since the time that the articles were last amended. These
alteration, inter alia, enable the _Gompary lo issue shares of different classes, including
redeemable shares and securities, and with the approval of a special resolution to
purchase its own shares and increase the share qualification for Direclors. The other
alterations made are to reflect the changes in procedure now incorporated into the
Company Law, including submission of quarterly accounts and holdlnF of quarterly Board
Meetings, and 1o ensure acceptance of powers of attorney granted to deal wilh various
litigations and other matters in court.

A copy of the new set of articles of association is attached.
The resolution required for the above purpose is set forth at item No.5 in the notice

convening the Annual General Meeting and that resolution will be proposed and passed
as a Special Resolution.

T $ —e—
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Chairman's Review

Dear Shareholders
Assalam-o-Alaikum

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all,
on behalf of the Board of Directors, in the forty sixth
Annual General Meeting of your Company and to
present annual review of the results of your
Company and audited financial statements for the
financial year ended June 30, 2009.




| feel pleasure in informing you that even though there were various challenges besides
uncertain market dynamics, your Company however succeeded in securing profit after tax
of RAs.1,533 million despite net loss after tax of Rs.2,699 million in the Fuel Segment.

Although same level of product and yield mix were maintained as that of last year,
profitability could not be maintained due to asymmedrical change in product prices to that
of crude oil prices that crashed during the year. Exchange rate loss of Rs.2,385 million due
to drastic fall of rupee value to that of US dollar was the main contributor. In addition to that
the Government also revised the Pricing Formula in August 2008 by cutling down deemed
duty on HSD from 10% 1o 7.5% and also revised Motor Gasoline pricing mechanism that
further reduced the refiners’ margin. Circular debis in the Oif and Power sector have nol
only slowed down the economy but have also severely affecled the refining sector in
Pakistan. Consequently, the overall bank balances and investmenis have reduced
significantly. Management despite all these critical factors maintained the throughput at
89% as against 101% for the same period last year and made all out efforts to mitigate the
effects of adverse economic environment.

Your refinery along with other refineries is negotiating with the government for review of
the pricing formula. | am very much hopeful that keeping in view the prevailing economic
challenges and the performance of refining sector for the year, government would not only
re-visit and rationalize the amendments in the pricing formula but would also take
measures 1o aftract further invesiment in the refining sector of Pakistan in terms of new
projects.

Acknowledgement

| appreciate the efforts of Board of Directors, management, stafi and workers of your
Company for their untiring efforts to effectively check the losses during such a volatile year
and maintaining the overall profitabitity of your company. It is indeed a matter of greal
satisfaction and encouragement as it reflects the inherent resilience and strength of your
company to face all odds. | also take this opportunity 10 express my gratitude 1o the
government, crude oil suppliers, customers, banks, financial institulions and contractors for
their cooperation and partnership that they extended to your Company.

| am confident that the management of your Company and all stakehotders wili continue 1o
strive for the achievement of even better resulis for the times to come.

August 19, 2009
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Directors' Report

As;alan'l-i::-niaiﬁml

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the 46th
Annual Report of National Refinery Limited together with the audited
financial statements and auditors' report thereon for the year ended

June 30, 2009,

OVERVIEW

The year was full of challenges for the
refining seclor in Pakistan, Declining crude
prices and changes In pricing struclure of
high speed diesel and moltor gasoline
adversely affected the Gross Refining
Margins of fuel segment, This was further
compounded by foreign exchange losses
of Rs. 2,385 milion. A continuous
monitoring of refiners margin was done to
ensure that the refinery is operated at its
optimum throughput in order 1o curtail
losses of fuel segment in periods of
negative margin. However, due lo adverse

margins the profitability of fuel segment
ended at after lax loss of Rs.2,699 miilion
compared to profit afier lax of Rs.3,064
million in the last year.

In lube segment the demand remained
depressed due to slower economic activity
in the country and abroad. Declining price
irend kept the customers away from
routine buying. However, your company
succeeded in atlaining lube base oil sale
volume of 173,876 M. Tons as compared
to 204,551 M. Tons [ast year.




Financial Results

The company has earned a net profit after
tax of Rs 1,533 million in the current year
as compared to Rs 6,005 million in the last
year. The loss in fuel segment of Rs 2,699
million has been transferred to Special

Profit After TAX

1 jtappurens 1 mofiemj

Reserve as per the Pricing Formula
discussed in note 17.2. An amount of

200008 200708 200807 200508 2004095 200504

Appropriations

Profit available for appropriation after
transfer to Special Reserve under the
Pricing Formula as per note 17.2
Transfer to General Reserves

Final Dividend @ 125% (2008: 200%)

Dividend

The Board of Directors has recommend
final cash dividend @ 125% (Rs 12.5 per
share) for the year ended June 30, 2009.

Credit Rating

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA)
for 5th successive year has reaffirmed the

Rs. 4,232 million is available for
appropriation.
A F ]
i 130
|
2008-09 2007-08

(Rupees in million)

4,232 3,056
_ 3200 1457
1,000 1,599

The dividend recommended is subject to
the approval by the shareholders in Annual
General Meeting. i

credit rating of the Company; long-term
rating "AAA" and short-term raling "A1+". .
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Key Operating & Financial Data

Key operating and financial data of last six years (2003 - 2009) is shown on page 30.

Contribution To National Exchequer

During the financial year, the company
contributed Rs.31.6 billion to the Nationai
exchequer in the shape of direct and

indirect taxes and eamed valuable foreign
exchange of US § 175 million through the
export of Naphtha and Lube Base Qil.

Occupational Health, Safety and Environment

Your company puts the highest emphasis
on protection of the environment and the
health and safety of employees, visitors,
customers, stakeholders, and community
in which it operates.

Self in-house HSE training programs were
conducted for executive, non-executive
slaff including contractors' staff during the
year. NRL aiso has comprehensive Permit
to Work System for safe execution of all

types of jobs.

In order to strictly practice the principles of
Energy Conservation & Environment
protection NRL has acquired certification
in International Standard Organization i. e.
ISO 9001 (Quality), ISO 14001
(Environment Management Systems) and
OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health &
Safety Assessment Series).

By the Grace of Almighty Allah and
concerted effortls of NRL staff, your
company has achieved 12.88 million safe
man-hours without LTI (Loss Time Injury)
from July 2002 to 30th June 2009,




N
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Environment Excellence Awards

Your company is committed toward adherence
to Health, Safety, Environment and Quality
Management System and has enabled it to
achieve excellence awards. The company has
won the Environment Excellence Award for the

Employees & Management Relations

The cordial relationship between the
management and union persisted unabatedly.
The productivity achieved reflects the
concerted and sincere collective endeavors.
The company has plans to further promote the

Human Resource Development

Your Company considers its employees as
human capital and focuses special attention
on their training and development. Various staff
members were nominated for local and
overseas courses and workshops in different
technical and non-technical disciplines. In

Corporate Social Responsibility

The company realizes its social responsibility
lowards the national economy apart from its
customers, employees and shareholders. As a
responsible corporate cilizen, the company
contributed to different social segments of the

Trading in the Company Shares

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and their spouses and
minor children have nol traded in the shares of
the Company during the year. Only one share
has been Iransferred in the name of

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has, throughout the
year, complied with the 'Code of Corporate
Governance' contained in the listing
requirements of the stock exchanges and the

sixth time consecutively. NRL is one of the
major players in the Petroleum refining sector
of the country to become an environmental
friendly energy enterprise.

sports activities that would go a long way in
maintaining good health of the employees,
boosting up their moral and inculcating sense
of belonging.

addition to hands on executive training plans,
the-.company also has apprenticeship program
where theoretical and practical training is
imparted prior to offering regular employment
to successful candidales.

economy in various ways for improving quality
of tha life in the country. Company is ambitious
to be recognized as social partner and not
only as commercial entity.

Mr. Shuaib A, Malik (Deputy Chairman / Chief
Executive Officer) which was previously held
by the company in the name of Mr. Ahmer
Qureshi (Ex. Company Secretary).

'Corporate and  Financial Reporting
Framework' of the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.



Audit Committee

The Directors have established a Board of Audit Committee comprising of a chairman and members
who are non-executive directors. The details of the atiendance of the directors of the Audit Committee
Meetings for the year ended June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Name of Directors Total Number of Meeting Attended
Audilt Committee Meetings*

Mr. Abdus Sattar

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz
Mr. S. Ahmed Abid

Mr. Bilal A. Khan

Mr. Igbal A. Khwaja

O|l=]&|&h|:
O|=|&|&|~

* Held during the period concerned members were on the Commitiee.

Statement by Board of Directors in Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

a) The Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operation, eash flows and change in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained in the manner required under the Companies
Ordinance 1984,

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as notified in Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of financial statements.

e) The financial statements prepared by the management conforms to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

f) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been eflectively implemented and
monitored.

g) The Board of Directors considered that the Company is & going ©

h) There has been no material departure from the best practices of the
detailed in the listing regulations.

i) All major Government levies in the normal course of business; payal
been cleared subsequent 1o the year-end.

National Refinery Limited | 26
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) The values of investment of varlous funds, based on their respective accounts are as under:

(Rs. In million) - Un - audited

Pension Fund 2,394
Graluity Fund 63
Officars Provident Fund 433
Workers Provident Fund 157
Post Retirement Medical Fund 512

k) Significant deviations, plans, decisions and business expansion have been outlined in the

report.

[) No trade in the share of the Company were camied out by the Board of Directors, CEQ, CFO,
Company Secretary, Exacutive and their spouses and minor Children except that already

mentioned.
Directors and Board Meetings held during the year

Duning the financial year 2008-09 five meselings of the Board of Directors were held. The

attendance of the Directors was as under:

Name of Directors Total Number Meeting
of Meetings * | Attended
Dr. Ghaith R. Pharaon - Chairman
Alternate Direclor Mr. Bilal A. Khan / Mr. Shuaib A. Malik /
Mr. igbal A. Khwaja 5 5
Mr. Laith G. Pharaon
Alternate Director Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 5 5
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon
Alternate Director Mr. S. Ahmed Abid 5 5
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik 5 5
Mr. Abdus Sattar b 5
Mr. Tarik Kivanc 8 5
Mr. Firasat Ali 5 4

* Held during the penod concerned directors were on Board.




Ongoing and Future Projects

* High Speed Diesel (HSD) Desulfurization Project:

To produce clean High Speed Diesel of Eurc-ll
standard, the Engineering Design &
Specification (EDS) package was completed in
September 2008. Project Management
Consultant has been appointed to assist in the
completion of the project. The process for
selection of suitable Engineering, Procurement,

* Product metering system:

Product Metering System al refinery and port
oil terminal for transfer of HSD to Oil Marketing
Companies (OMC's) is in final slage. This will

* Radar gauging system:

Radar gauging system is required for storage
tanks 10 measure products accurately. In
Phase |, Radar gauges on 41 tanks have been
installed and in Phase Il additional 64 gauges

* Storage Tanks:

In order to meet the rapidly changing market
demands and to increase the operational
flexibility and storage capacities of crude oil and
various products, the work on construction of
additional nine storage tanks are at advance

* New Water Reservoir:

To cater for acute shoriage of water during
summer season, the company has initiated the
construction of new water reservoir having
capacity of three million gallons. The designing

Construction and Commissioning (EPCCY),
gontractor is in process. The Governmenl has
advised time line for clean diesel production by
July 2012. Negotiations with the Government
are in process for necessary incentives to cover
the cost of the project which is highly capital
intensive.

bring more efficiency and accuracy in product
handiing. Commissioning target of fliow meters
is September 2009.

will be installed by December 2009. It will cover
all 105 products storage tanks required for
custody transfer of finished producils.

stage. The designing, engineering and
procurement of materials have already been
completed. The construction contractors are
mobilized at site. The project is expected ta be
completed by December 2009.

and engineering work has been completed.
The construction contractor has mobilized at
site and work is in progress. The project is
expected 1o be completed by December 2009.
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. De-bottleneddngstudy for Increase In capacity and ylelds of distillates from vacuum tower:

It is planned to replace the existing oil fired be based on maximum potential of vacuum
cylindrical vacuum heater Instafled at Vacuum column and associated equipments. The
Section of Two Slage Distillation unit at Lube project shall be undertaken after the feasibility
Refinery. The capacity of new heater is study of the project has been approved by the
envisaged for enhanced throughput, which will  Board.

Pattern of Sharehoiding

Pattern of shareholdings is shown on page 83.

Auditors

The Auditors relire and offer themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee recommeands the
reappointment of Messrs A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants as auditors for the financial
year ending June 30, 2010.

Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its appreciation and gratitude for the company’s management and iis

staff for their untiring efforts. The Board aiso acknowledges the efforts and contributions of
customers and other stakeholders for their patronage and business.

On behalf of the Board
Shuaib A. Malik

Damascus Deputy Chairman /
August 19, 2009 Chiet Executive Officer




Stakeholders information

2008-09 200708 2006-07 200506 200405 200304

<] (Rupees in million) I

Profit and Loss Agcount
Net turnover 109,578 129,388 91,327 80,894 60,819 40,400
Gross profit 5,273 10,681 6,264 4,909 3,936 2,857
Operating profil 5,208 10,183 8101 5272 3,308 2,590
Profit before tax 2,813 8,831 6.095 5,262 3,295 2,765
Profit after tax 1,533 6,005 4,203 3410 212 1.850
Balanca Sheet
Share Capital 800 800 668 666 668 6868
Reserves 16,553 16,619 12,080 8710 6,034 4913
Shareholder equity 17,353 17,419 12,746 9,376 6,700 5579
Property, plant and aquipment 2,096 2,032 2106 1,535 1,514 1,281
Cumrent Assets 39,156 43,747 30,055 22,294 15,849 14214
Cument Liabilities 24,856 28,873 19,658 15,370 11,732 11121
Net current assets / liabilities 14,299 14,874 10,397 8,924 4117 3,793
Long term / Deferred liabilities 136 312 237 175 - 183
Investor information
Gross profit ratio 4.81 8.28 6.88 €.18 6.47 7.32
Net profit ratio 1.40 464 460 422 3.49 458
Return on equity in % 8.83 3447 32.98 36.37 31.68 33.16
Return on capital employed in % 191.71 750.63 631.08 512.01 318.47 277.62
Eaming per shares (EPS) Rupees 19.17 75.10 63.07 5117 31.82 27.75
Market value per share atyearend  (Rupees. 10/ share) 220.02 297.47 344.00 256.00 316.30 185.00
Imventory furnover rati

{ No. of days in inveniory 8.17 1132 12.01 15.68 16.62 1183
Debtor turnover ratio

! No. of days in receivables 41.09 22.68 22.81 1557 12.02 36.97
Fixed assets tumover ratio 52.28 63.30 43.00 52.32 39.70 31.54
Quick /Acid test ratio 1.08 1.05 113 1.02 1.07 1.0
Price eaming ratio 11.48 3.96 5.45 5.00 9.94 8.67
Cash Dividend per share {Rupces 10/share) 12.50 20.00 20.00 16.00 1250 1250
Dividend yield ratic in % 5.68 6.72 2581 825 ass B.78
Bonus shares issued in % - - 20.00 . - -
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Statement of Value Added

Gross sales revenue

Less: Boughtin matenal and services

Add: Income [rom investment
Cther Income

Total Value Added

Applied as follows

Employees remuneration as:

Salaries, wages and benefits

Government as:

Company taxation

Levies

Worker's fund

Shareholders as:

Dividend

Retained in business :

Depreciation

Amontization
Net earnings

2009

140,233,271

107,426,675

32,806,596

957,457
407,691

2008
(Rupees in housand)

146,233,271

120,690,803

25,542,468

845,030
459,472

1,365,148

34,1M,784

1,119,523

1,280,428
29,795,205
208,945

1,404 402

26,946,870

1,129,778

31,284,578

999,583

2,825,860
16,085,860
654,521

19,566,241

1,699,331

228,331
6,264
533,445

768,060

34,171,744

239.204
6215
4,406,101

4,651,520

26,946 BTD
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Graphic Representation
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Exchange Rate - at Month End
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Code of Corporate Govemance prepared by the Board of Directors of
National Refinery Limited to comply with the Listing Regulations of the Karachi, Lahore
and Islamabad Stock Exchanges where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the
Board of Directors of the Company. QOur responsibility is to review, to the extent where
such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate
Govemance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarity to inquines of the
Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and interal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We have not carried out any special review of the internal control
system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board's statement on internal
controls covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Further, Sub-Regulation (xiii a) of Listing Regulation 35 notified by The Karachi Stock
Exchange (Guarantee) Limiled vide circular KSE/N-269 dated January 19, 2009 requires
the company to place before the board of directors for their consideration and approval
related parly transactions distinguishing between firansactions camied out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm'’s length price recording proper justification for using such altemate
pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also required to be separately
placed before the audit commitiee, We are only required and have ensured compliance of .
requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the board of directors
and placement of such transactions before the audit commitiee. We have not carried out
any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that
the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in
all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Goverance as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2009,

Chari untapts
Karachi M
Dated: September 2, 2009

Luhore Oificn- 305509, 5* Floor, Adlalsh Suiiding, F.0.Box 1%, Shatwah-e-Cuald-e-Aram, Labone-34000, Pakigien Tal: ($2-42) 4205058-85 Fax: (92-42) 4203088
blasnabiad Offece: LA Building, 37 Floos, 4% Blue Area, Farl-ulHHag Road, P.O.Bax 1021, dpmabed-44000, Pakisten Tek= (92.51) 227345760 Faa: {(92-51) 2277914
Kabnd Office: Howne No. 4, Strest No. §, District &, Road Xarte-3, Kabwd, Afghanivtan Tel : (31-799) 315310-203424




Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

This statement ig being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in listing
regulations of Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed, for the purpose of establishing a
framework of good governance, whereby a listed Company is managed in compliance with the best practices of
corporale govemnanca.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

« The Company encourages represeniation of independent non-execulive direclors and directors
representing minority interests on its Board of Direclors. Al present the Board includes one independent
non-executive director representing minority shareholders.

¢ The Directors have confirmed that none of them is sarving as a director in more than ten lisied companies,
including this Compary.

= All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulied in
payment of any loan 1o a banking company, a DFI or an NBF or, being a member of a stock exchange, has
been declared as defaulter by that slock exchange.

* No casual vacancy occurred in the Board of directors during the year ended June 30, 2009.

* The Company has prepared a 'Statement of Ethics and Business Practices’, which has been signed by all
the directors and employees of the Company.

* The Board has developed a vision and mission statement, overall corporate stralegy and significant policies
of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
wore approved or amended has been maintained.

* Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and
other executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

* The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman or Deputy Chairman and all the meetings
were attended by the Chiel Financial Officer and Company Secretary. The Board meets at least once in
every quarter. Writlen notice of the Board meetings along with agenda and working papers, were circulated
at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings ware appropriately recorded,
circulated and signed by the Chairman of the meeting of the Board of Directors,

* The Direclors were apprised of their duties and responsibilities from time to time.,
= The Board approved terms of appointment and remunerations of Chiel Executive and appointment of Chief

Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secrelary and Head of Internal Audil, including their remunemation and
terms and conditions of emplgyment, as determined by the CED,
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* The director's report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of code and fully
describes the salient matters required fo be disclosed.

* The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements of the Company before approval of the Board.

¢ The directors, CEQ and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the pattemn of shareholding.

* The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of Code.

* The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of four members; all of them are non-executive
directors including the Chairman of the committes,

¢ The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and
final results of the Company as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been
formed and advised 1o the committee for compliance.

+ The Board has set-up an effactive internal audit function and that is involved in the internal Audit on full time
basis relating to the business and other affairs of the Company.

* The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfaclory rating under
the quality control review program of the Instilule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of
the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the
firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

* The slatutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

* The related party transactions have been placed before the audit committee and approved by the Board of
Directors atongwith pricing methods for transactions carried out on terms equivalent to thosae that prevail in
the arm's length transactions.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with,

On behalf of the Board

Shualb A. Mallk
Deputy Chairman /
Chief Executive Officer
Augusi 19, 2009




The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee

The Board has constituted a fully functional Audit Commtttee. All members of the Audit Committas are
non-axecutive directors. The features of the terms of reference of the committee In accordance of Code of
Corporate Governance are:

a) Determination of appropriate measure to safeguard the Company's assets;
b) Rewview of praliminary announcements of results prior to publication;

c) Review of quarterty, half yearty and annual financlal staiement of the Company, prior to their approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on;

d) Facllitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major obsarvations arising from
Interim and final audits and any matier that the auditors may wish 1o highlight (in the absence of
management, where necessary);

o) Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management's response thereto;

f) Ensuring coordination between the internal and extemal audilors of the Company;

o) Review of the scope and extent of internal audit and ensuring that the intemal audit function has
adequate resourcss and Is a appropriately placed within the Company;

h) Consideration of major findings of internal investigations and management's response thereto;

) Ascertaining that the infernal control system including financlal and operational controls, accounting
system and reporiing structurs are adequate and sffective;

) Review the Company's statement on internal control system prior to endorsement by the Board of
Directors;

k) Instituting spacial projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by
the Board of Directors, in consultation with the Chief Exacutive and to consider remittance of any
matter to the extermal auditors or to any other external body;

) Determination of compllance with relevant statutory requirements;

m) Monitoring compliance with the best practicas of corporats governance and Identification of significant
violations thereof: and

n) Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

In addition, as defined in the Code of Corporale Governance, the Audit Commities Is also responsibie for
recommending the appoiniment of external auditors.
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of National Refinery Limited as at June 30, 2009 and
the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for

the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal
control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether
the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we

report that:

{(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(b) in our opinion:

{i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1584, and are in
agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company's
business; and

(i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
year were in accordance with the objects of the company;

{c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to
us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at June 30, 2009 and of the profit, its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980), was deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Ch tapt
Karaachi s aﬁi
Dated: {) 72 SEP 2009

Name of the engagement partner: Ali Muhammad Mesia

Lahore (lice: 305-50%, 58 fleay, Allslah Building, P.0.Box 19, Shabrah-c-Quakd-c-Azam, Lahore-S4000, Paldaian Tal: (92-42} 28507
, : 3 B-85 Fax: 192-42) 6283000
I lamabad (Wice: PIA Buikhng, 14 Flaot, 49 Bue Asca, Fazl-ultisq Raad, P.O.Box 1021, hlamabed44000, Fakitan Tol: (92.51) 227 145760 F ax: mz-lsu BTV
Wabndd Offica: Himre M. 4, Street No. Y, Diurict 6, Raad Kane- 3, Kabnl, Alghandsian Tl : (33-799) 315320.203424



Annual Report 2009 | 45

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred taxation

Long term investment

Long term loans and deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and chemicals

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits and prepayments

Accrued interest

Other receivables

Investments

Tax refunds due from Government - Sales tax
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Authorised
100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Reserves

LIABILITIES

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Retirement benefit obligations

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Provisions
Taxation

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Note

Noobhw

10
11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18

19
20

21

2009

2008

(Rupees in thousand)

3,019,311 2,601,276
5,938 11,911
84,498 164,407
79,147 79,923
3,188,894 2,857,517
936,594 779,076
12,251,181 13,288,291
14,841,288 10,173,051
25,219 51,028
53,749 95,899
91,500 30,780
2,382,583 2,183,257
197,622 3,615,359
575,902 408,221
7,800,079 13,122,136
39,155,717 43,747,098
42,344,611 46,604,615
1,000,000 1,000,000
799,666 799,666
16,553,075 16,619,379
17,352,741 17,419,045
135,547 312,277
23,032,238 26,662,420
301,485 298,569
1,522,600 1,912,304
24,856,323 28,873,293
42,344,611 46,604,615
Director




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Gross sales

Trade discounts, taxes, duties and levies
Net sales

Cost of products sold

Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating income

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share

Note

22
23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

140,112,250 146,233,271
(30,533,886) (16,847,455)

109,578,364 129,385,816
(104,304,898)  (118,705,060)
5,273,466 10,680,756

(844,157) (889,008)
(371,655) (376,170)
1,365,148 1,404,402
(214,958) (657,019)

5,207,844 10,162,961
(2,394,388) (1,331,669)
2,813,456 8,831,292
(1,280,428) (2,825,860)

1,533,028 6,005,432

(Rupees)
19.17 75.10

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Income tax paid

Long term loans and deposits - net

Gratuity paid

Pension fund contribution

Finance cost paid

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Investments encashed / (made)

Interest received on balances with banks

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Exchange gain on foreign currency bank accounts
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note 2009

(Rupees in thousand)

2008

32 (5,534,242) 7,770,085
(1,590,223) (2,606,817)

776 (15,533)

- (1,508)

(273,558) (3,205)

(46) (259)

(7,397,293) 5,142,763

(647,735) (497,682)

(311) -

2,118 3,492

3,492,179 (2,443,293)

821,841 749,055

3,668,092 (2,188,428)

(1,593,649) (1,326,308)

(5,322,850) 1,628,027

13,122,136 11,492,152

793 1,957

15 7,800,079 13,122,136

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

Director




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SHARE
CAPITAL CAPITAL RESERVES REVENUE RESERVES Special Total
Issued, Capital Exchange  Reserve for General  Unappropriated reserve
subscribed compensation equalisation issue of reserve profit (note 17.2)
and paid-up reserve reserve  bonus shares
- (Rupees in thousand) >
Balance as at July 1, 2007 666,388 10,142 4,117 - 4,687,000 3,710,566 3,668,176 12,746,389
Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2007
- Rs. 20 per share - - - - - (1,332,776) - (1,332,776)
Transfer to general reserve - - - - 2,244,400 (2,244,400) - -
Transfer to reserve for issue
of bonus shares - - - 133,278 - (133,278) - -
Issue of 1 bonus share for
every 5 shares held 133,278 - - (133,278) - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - - 6,005,432 - 6,005,432
Transfer to special reserve - - - - - (2,949,521) 2,949,521 -
Balance as at June 30, 2008 799,666 10,142 4,117 - 6,931,400 3,056,023 6,617,697 17,419,045
Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2008
- Rs. 20 per share - - - - - (1,599,332) - (1,599,332)
Transfer to general reserve - - - - 1,456,600 (1,456,600) - -
Profit for the year - - - - - 1,533,028 - 1,533,028
Loss after tax from fuel refinery
operations transferred to
special reserve - - - - - 2,699,059 (2,699,059) -
Balance as at June 30, 2009 799,666 10,142 4,117 - 8,388,000 4,232,178 3,918,638 17,352,741
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
m——
Chief Executive Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2.1

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

National Refinery Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on August 19, 1963 as a public limited company and its
shares are listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges in Pakistan. The registered office of the
Company is situated at 7-B, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, production and sale of large range of petroleum products. The
refinery complex of the Company comprises of three refineries, consisting of two lube refineries, commissioned in
1966 and 1985, and a fuel refinery added to the complex in 1977.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance,
1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the
provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are provision for income tax
and provision for post employment benefits.

The Company recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Significant estimates relating to post employment benefits are disclosed in note 18.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on the amounts
disclosed in the financial statements.

No critical judgement has been used in applying the accounting policies.

Amendments to published standards and new interpretations effective in current period

i. IFRS 7 - 'Financial Instruments: Capital Disclosures', introduces new disclosures relating to financial
instruments. Adoption of the standard has extended the disclosures presented in note 35 to the financial
statements.

i. IFRIC 14 'IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction' was

issued in July 2007 and is effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008. This interpretation provides
general guidance on the extent to which pension surplus may be recognised as an asset.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2.2

23

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are consid-
ered relevant, but not yet effective

Following IAS, amendment to IAS, IFRS and IFRIC interpretation have been issued by the IASB and are likely to
affect future financial statements, although none is expected to have a material impact on the results or the
financial position of the Company.

i. IAS 1 - 'Presentation of Financial Statements' was issued in September 2007 and will be effective for the
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The amendments to the standard requires various disclosures
and presentation of transactions with owners in statement of changes in equity and with non-owners in the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

i. 1AS 23 (Amendment) - 'Borrowing Cost' effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009,
requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of cost of that asset.

iii. IFRS 8 - 'Operating segments' effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The new
standard requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.

Interpretations to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and are not
considered relevant

i. IFRS 3 - 'Business Combinations' Effective from July 1, 2009

IFRS 4 - 'Insurance Contracts' Effective from January 1, 2009

ii. IFRIC 4 - 'Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease' Effective from July 1, 2010

.E.

IFRIC 12 - 'Service Concession Arrangements' Effective from July 1, 2010
v. IFRIC 15 - 'Agreements for the construction of
Real Estate' Effective from January 1, 2009
vi. IFRIC 16 - 'Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation' Effective from October 1, 2008

Overall Valuation Policy

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise disclosed
in the respective accounting policies notes.

Property, plant and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except capital work-in-progress,
which is stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

2.4

25

Capital work-in-progress consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and
intangible assets in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets
category as and when assets are available for use.

Depreciation is charged to income using the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over
its estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 3.1 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the month in which the asset is put to use and on disposals up to the month immediately preceding
the disposal. Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

The carrying value of operating assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal or retirement of assets are recognised in income currently.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to
the Company and that the cost of such asset can be measured reliably. These are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding the
cost beyond one year, are recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software,

implementation cost and related overhead cost.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification
and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the cost of the software.

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years or license period,
whichever is shorter.

The carrying value of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying value
exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.
Investments

The Company determines the appropriate classification of its investment at the time of purchase.

Investment in securities which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time are classified as available
for sale. These are initially measured at fair value including the transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of

investments whose fair value can be reliably measured is stated at fair value with gains or losses taken to equity.

Available for sale investments in unlisted securities whose fair value can not be reliably measured are carried at
cost less impairment.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Investment held for trading are stated at fair value through profit or loss. These are initially measured at fair value
with transaction cost charged to income. Subsequent measurement is at fair value with changes taken to profit and
loss account. In the case of investments in open ended mutual funds, fair value is determined on the basis of
period end Net Asset Value (NAV) as announced by the Asset Management Company.
Impairment, if any is charged to profit and loss account.

2.6 Stores, spares and chemicals

Stores, spares and chemicals, except items in transit, are stated at moving average cost. Cost comprises invoice
value and other direct costs. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary.

ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
2.7 Stock-in-trade

Stock of crude oil is valued at lower of cost, determined on a first-in-first out (FIFO) basis, and net realisable value.
Crude oil in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Stocks of semi-finished and finished products are valued at lower of cost, determined on a weighted average
basis, and net realisable value. Cost in relation to semi-finished and finished products represents cost of crude oil
and an appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Trade debts and other receivables
considered irrecoverable are written-off.

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks, short-term bank deposits and short-term running finance, if any, are carried at cost.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and short-term running finance.

2.10 Staff retirement benefits
2.10.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% per annum of the basic salary.
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2.10.2 Defined benefit plans

2.11

212

The Company operates the following schemes:

i)  Funded Pension Scheme for permanent, regular and full time managerial and supervisory staff of the
Company. Contributions are made to the fund on the basis of actuarial valuation and are charged to income.
The most recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2009, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit
Method'.

ii) Funded gratuity scheme for non-management permanent employees. Provision is made annually to cover
obligations under the scheme, as per actuarial valuation. The most recent valuation of the scheme was
carried out as at June 30, 2009, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method'.

iii) Funded medical scheme for its management employees who are eligible for pension on normal or early
retirement and to their widows on death of employee in service or after retirement if they are entitled for
pension. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme, by way of a charge to income,
calculated in accordance with the actuarial valuation. The most recent valuation of the scheme was carried
out as at June 30, 2009, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method'.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense from the next year when the cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for each individual plan exceed 10% of the higher of (a) the defined
benefit obligation and (b) the fair value of plan assets. These gains or losses are recognised over the expected
average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, if any, and as reduced by the fair
value of plan assets. Any assets resulting from the calculation is limited to the unrecognised actuarial losses and
unrecognised past service cost plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in future contribution to
the plan.

Compensated absences
The Company provides facility to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leave. Under the scheme
employees are entitled to 30 days annual leave. Unutilised leave can be accumulated upto a maximum of 2 years.

At the time of retirement entire accumulated leave balance is encashable.

Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and are charged
to income. The most recent valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2009 using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid for goods and
services.
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2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

214 Taxation

2141 Current
The charge for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates after taking into account tax credits, rebates
available, if any.

2.14.2 Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account.

2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised as follows:

)

a) Local sales of products delivered through pipelines are recorded when products passes through pipelines
flange. Sale of products loaded through gantry is recognised when products are loaded into tank lorries.

b) Export sales are recorded on the basis of products delivered to tankers.

c) Handling and storage income, pipelines charges, scrap sales, insurance commission and rental incomes are
recognised on accrual basis.

d) Return/ Interest on bank deposits and advances to employees are recognised on accrual basis.
2.16 Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost related to the financing of major projects during construction phase is capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken
to income currently.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised
cost or cost, as the case may be.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Segment reporting

The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of
production process for products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit.
The fuel segment is primarily a diverse supplier of fuel products and offers gasoline, diesel oils, kerosene and fur-
nace oil. The lube segment mainly provides different types of lube base oils, asphalt, wax free oil and other petro-
leum products for different sectors of the economy. Intersegment transfers are made at relevant costs to each seg-
ment.

Dividends and appropriation to general reserve

Dividends and appropriation to general reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which

these are approved.
2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets - note 3.1 2,095,848 2,031,962
Capital work-in-progress - note 3.2 923,463 569,314
3,019,311 2,601,276
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3.1 Operating assets

Leasehold Building Oil  Processing Power Pipelines Water  Vehicles Furniture Computers Office and TOTAL

land on terminal plantand generation power and and and other  other
(note 3.1.1) leasehold storage tanks plant other fixtures  related equipments
land utilities accessories

A

(Rupees in thousand)

Y

Year ended June 30, 2009

Opening net book value 49625 208026 175867 684,911 292469 172,084 226450 31,9283 5,609 5008 179,990 2,031,962
Additions including
transfers - note 3.1.2 - 21,114 72,588 78,140 - 29,219 16,367 4,679 926 - 70,553 293,586
Disposals
Cost : : : : |l @279 - || (3527) : : (16) (7,817)
Depreciation - - - - - 4,274 - 2,170 - - 4 6,448
(1,357) - - (12) (1,369)
Depreciation charge (600) (14225) (18,000) (70,402) (52,005) (17,795) (24,981)  (9,774) (697)  (2217) (17,635) (228,331)
Closing net book value 49,025 214915 230455 692649 240464 183508 217,836 25471 5,838 2,791 232,896 2,095,848

As at June 30, 2009

Cost 60035 390528 412576 4216785 747,293 331056 936572 79240 10176 42531 396832 7,623,624
Accumulated depreciation (11,010) (175613) (182,121) (3524,136) (506,829) (147,548) (718736) (63769)  (4338) (39,740) (163936) (5527,776)
Net book value 49025 214915 230455 692,649 240464 183508 217,836 25471 5838 2791 232,89 2095848

Year ended June 30, 2008

Opening net book value 50225 210982 184,043 724544 337,723 164,605 249278 20,047 5,557 4996 154266 2,106,266
Additions including

transfers - note 3.1.2 - 10,332 6,624 50,346 6,668 22,748 1,431 20,442 670 5,892 40,301 165,454
Disposals
Cost . . . . . - a7ee) ][ B471) . (76) . (7,313)
Depreciation - - - - - - 1,766 4,993 - - - 6,759

(478) - (76) - (554)

Depreciation charge (600) (13288)  (14,800) (89,979) (51922) (15269) (24,259)  (8,088) (618)  (5804) (14577)  (239,204)
Closing net book value 49625 208026 175867 684,911 292469 172,084 226450 31,923 5,609 5008 179990 2,031,962
As at July 1, 2008
Cost 60,035 369414 339988 4,138645 747293 306,111 920205 78,088 9,250 42531 326295 7,337,855
Accumulated depreciation (10,410) (161,388) (164,121) (3,453,734) (454,824) (134,027) (693755) (46,165  (3641) (37,523) (146,305) (5,305,893)
Net book value 49625 208,026 175867 684911 292469 172,084 226450 31,923 5,609 5008 179,990 2,031,962

Annual Rate of
Depreciation % 1 5 5t08 5&7 7 8 6 20 75 33.33 5t015
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3.1.1 Leasehold land includes land subleased / licensed to the following lessees / licensees:

e Pak-Hy Oils (Private) Limited

e Chevron Pakistan Limited

e Shell Gas LPG (Pakistan) Limited

e Pakistan State Oil Company Limited

e PERAC Research & Development Foundation
e  Petroleum Packages Limited

e Anoud Power Generation Limited

e Pakistan Oilfields Limited

e Attock Petroleum Limited
The carrying value of each of the above is immaterial.

3.1.2  During the year, the following amounts have been transferred from capital work-in-progress note 3.2 to operating
assets note 3.1:

2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

Buildings on leasehold land 19,759 8,205
Qil terminal 72,589 4,217
Processing plant and storage tanks 78,140 4,187
Power generation plant - 6,668
Pipelines 29,219 22,748
Water power and other utilities 16,367 1,431
Vehicles 660 4,266
Office and other equipment 60,275 31,068

277,009 82,790
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3.2

The details of property, plant and equipment disposed of during the year are as follows:

Cost Accumulated
depreciation book value proceeds
<—— (Rupees in thousand) ——>

Net

Sales

Vehicles 905 287 618 724
860 215 645 688
806 712 94 330
2,571 1,214 1,357 1,742
written down value
below Rs. 50,000 each
Office and other
equipments 16 4 12 -
Vehicle 956 956 - 376
Pipelines - scrapped 4,274 4,274 - -
7,817 6,448 1,369 2,118

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at July 1, 2008
Additions during the year
Transfers during the

year - note 3.1.2

Balance as at June 30, 2009
Balance as at July 1, 2007
Additions during the year
Transfers during the

year - note 3.1.2

Balance as at June 30, 2008

Mode of
disposal

Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy

Particulars of
buyers

Mr. Gulam Fareed
(Ex-employee)
Mr. Alam Zia
(Ex-employee)
Mr. Kamal Anwer
(Ex-employee)

LUBE REVAMP PROJECT Other Advances to  Total
Advances Fee Material projects other
to and cost contractors/
contractors technical suppliers
studies
< (Rupees in thousand) e
281 1,995 7,629 553,572 5,837 569,314
- 8,852 9,869 573,360 39,077 631,158
- - - (276,349) (660)  (277,009)
281 10,847 17,498 850,583 44,254 923,463
- - - 228,591 8,495 237,086
281 1,995 7,629 403,505 1,608 415,018
- - - (78,524) (4,266) (82,790)
281 1,995 7,629 553,572 5,837 569,314
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2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)
4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — Computer software
Net carrying value
Balance at beginning of the year 11,911 18,126
Addition at cost 311 -
Amortisation charge for the year (6,284) (6,215)
Balance at end of the year 5,938 11,911
Gross carrying value
Cost 50,836 50,525
Accumulated amortisation (44,898) (38,614)
Net book value 5,938 11,911

Amortisation is charged at the rate of 33.33% per annum.
5. DEFERRED TAXATION
Debit balances arising in respect of provisions for:

- slow moving and obsolete stores,

spares and chemicals 154,851 173,927
- duties and taxes 71,680 70,553
- retirement benefits - 39,826
- discount on crude oil purchases 85,605 84,258

- long term investment, doubtful debts and
pending litigations 14,246 14,022
- old outstanding liabilities offered for tax 128,228 130,108
454,610 512,694

Credit balance arising in respect of
accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation (370,112) (348,287)
84,498 164,407
6. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Investment in related party (unlisted)
— available for sale

Anoud Power Generation Limited 10,800 10,800
[1,080,000 (2008: 1,080,000) Ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each, Equity held 9.09 percent
(2008: 9.09 percent)]

Less: Provision for impairment 10,800 10,800
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LONG TERM LOANS AND DEPOSITS
Loans - considered good

Secured - note 7.2

2009

2008

(Rupees in thousand)

- Executives 23,368 26,461
- Employees 42,891 39,512
66,259 65,973
Less: Recoverable within one year shown under
current assets - note 11
- Executives 6,145 5,968
- Employees 7,293 6,655
13,438 12,623
52,821 53,350
Unsecured - note 7.3
- Executives 2,033 2,779
- Employees 1,194 883
3,227 3,662
Less: Recoverable within one year shown under
current assets - note 11
- Executives 636 673
- Employees 333 241
969 914
2,258 2,748
55,079 56,098
Deposits
- Utilities 7,938 7,938
- Others 16,130 15,887
24,068 23,825
79,147 79,923
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans:
2009 2008
Executives Employees Total Executives Employees Total
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Balance at beginning of the year 29,240 40,395 69,635 26,134 41,383 67,517
Effect of promotions to Executives 3,853 (3,853) - 2,484 (2,484) -
Add: Disbursements 4,003 13,800 17,803 10,326 10,575 20,901
Less: Recoveries (11,695) (6,257) (17,952) (9,704) (9,079)  (18,783)
Balance at end of the year 25,401 44,085 69,486 29,240 40,395 69,635
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7.2

7.3

9.1

9.2

The secured loans to executives and employees are for the purchase of motor cars and house building. These are
granted in accordance with the terms of their employment and are recoverable in monthly installments over a period
ranging between 5 to 10 (2008: 5 to 10) years. Certain of these loans are interest free, whereas others carry interest
ranging from 3% to 7% (2008: 3% to 7%) per annum in case of motor car loans and 5% (2008: 5%) per annum in
case of house loans. These loans are secured against original title documents of respective assets.

The unsecured loans to executives and employees are either personal loans or given for the purchase of furniture
and motor cycles. These are granted in accordance with the terms of their employment and are recoverable in
monthly installments over a period of 4 to 12 (2008: 4 to 12) years and are interest free.

2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)

STORES, SPARES AND CHEMICALS

In hand
- Stores 293,698 230,301
- Spares 939,518 941,613
- Chemicals 127,106 86,445
1,360,322 1,258,359
In transit 84,402 100,572
1,444,724 1,358,931
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores,
spares and chemicals (508,130) (579,855)
936,594 779,076
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials
- Crude oil and condensate - note 9.1 6,737,943 8,315,621
- Naphtha 20,084 21,193
6,758,027 8,336,814
Semi finished products 1,576,437 925,522
Finished products - note 9.2 3,916,717 4,025,955
12,251,181 13,288,291

As at June 30, 2009, stock of raw material has been written down by Rs. 187.54 million (2008: Nil) to arrive at its
net realisable value.

Includes stocks held with the following third parties:
- Karachi Bulk Storage & Terminals (Pvt.) Limited 483,500

- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 14,384 7,021
497,884 7,021
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good

- related party - Attock Petroleum Limited 4,866,923 5,660,998
- others 9,974,365 4,512,053
Considered doubtful 21,174 21,174
14,862,462 10,194,225
Provision for doubtful debts (21,174) (21,174)
14,841,288 10,173,051

10.1 These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no history of default. The age analysis of
debt past due but not impaired is as follows:

Up to 3 months 5,144,437 3,234,433

3 to 6 months 6,649,111 -

More than 6 months 7,222 7,222
11. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - considered good

Current portion of long term loans - note 7

Secured
- Executives 6,145 5,968
- Employees 7,293 6,655
13,438 12,623
Unsecured
- Executives 636 673
- Employees 333 241
969 914
Short term loans to employees - unsecured,
interest free 433 448
Advances
- Executives 870 33
- Employees 367 894
- Suppliers 9,142 36,116
10,379 37,043
25,219 51,028
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

12. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Margin against letters of credit and guarantee 13,396 18,063
- Others 512 559
13,908 18,622
Prepayments
- Insurance 11,559 75,418
- Gratuity fund - 28
- Workers’ profits participation fund - note 19.4 23,472 -
- Others 4,810 1,831
39,841 77,277
53,749 95,899
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Receivable from related parties:
- Attock Petroleum Limited 836 1,316
- Attock Refinery Limited 455 6,245
- The Attock Oil Company Limited 3 -
1,294 7,561
Others:
- Pakistan Refinery Limited - note 13.1 654,754 1,185,710
- Pak Arab Refinery Limited - note 13.1 1,003,344 -
- Government of Pakistan - note 13.2 699,264 973,622
- Claims receivable 4,142 1,563
- Insurance rebate receivable 4,900 7,000
- Others 14,885 7,801
2,382,583 2,183,257

13.1 This represents amount due in respect of sharing of crude oil, freight and other charges paid by the Company on
behalf of Pakistan Refinery Limited and Pak Arab Refinery Limited.

13.2 This includes price differential claims amounting to Rs. 660.75 million (2008: Rs. 935.12 million).
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)
14. INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss

Investment in open ended mutual funds

2009 2008
Units

7,241,154 - National Investment Trust 194,425 -
31,054 5,922,593 Faysal Income & Growth Fund 3,197 612,574
- 26,681,542 NAFA Cash Fund - 287,544
- 9,472,905 Pakistan Income Fund - 487,476
- 1,993,352 Dawood Money Market Fund - 220,670
- 4,705,006 JS Abamco UTP Income Fund - 489,659
- 5,710,672 AMZ Plus Income Fund - 633,157
- 5,547,542 United Income & Growth Fund - 572,543
- 1,980,012 AKD Income Fund - 101,816
- 1,031,231 Askari Income Fund - 107,227
- 994,609 KASB Liquid Fund - 102,693
197,622 3,615,359

The fair value of these investments is the Net Asset Value (NAV) as at June 30, 2009 as quoted by the Asset Management
Companies.

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

In hand 500 500

With banks on:

Current accounts 52,592 302,508
Savings accounts 2,250,229 3,379,143
Deposit accounts
- local currency - note 15.1 5,491,847 9,422,474
- foreign currency
(US $ 61 thousand; 2008: US $ 258 thousand) 4,911 17,511
7,799,579 13,121,636
7,800,079 13,122,136

15.1 Includes Rs. 1.61 billion (2008: Rs. 2.32 billion) withheld from suppliers and deposited with banks as explained
in note 19.2.

These carry interest at the rates varying from 10.5% to 17.8% (2008: 11% to 14%) per annum.
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

16. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares

59,450,417 Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 594,504 594,504

6,469,963 Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each issued for

consideration other than cash 64,700 64,700
14,046,180 Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each issued as fully

paid bonus shares 140,462 140,462
79,966,560 799,666 799,666

16.1 RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF ORDINARY
SHARES OUTSTANDING

At the beginning of the year 79,966,560 66,638,800
Issue of 1 bonus share for every 5 shares held - 13,327,760
At the end of the year 79,966,560 79,966,560

16.2 As at June 30, 2009 and 2008, Attock Oil Group holds 51% equity stake in the Company through the following

companies:

(Number of Shares)
- Attock Refinery Limited 19,991,640 19,991,640
- Pakistan Qilfields Limited 19,991,640 19,991,640

- Attock Petroleum Limited 799,665 799,665
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)
17. RESERVES

Capital reserves

Capital compensation reserve - note 17.1 10,142 10,142
Exchange equalisation reserve 4,117 4117
14,259 14,259

Revenue reserves

General reserve 8,388,000 6,931,400
Unappropriated profit 4,232,178 3,056,023
12,620,178 9,987,423
Special reserve - note 17.2 3,918,638 6,617,697
16,553,075 16,619,379

171 Capital compensation reserve includes net amounts for (a) premature termination of crude oil sales, bareboat
charter-party and technical assistance agreements, (b) design defects and terminated service agreements and (c)
termination of bareboat charter-party and affreightment agreements.

17.2 This represents the reserve created under the directives of Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources. The
directive, with effect from July 1, 2002, replaced the formula of guaranteed return and in lieu thereof provided a
new formula. Under the new mechanism the refineries were directed to transfer to a ‘Special Reserve’, from their
profit after taxation attributable to fuel segment an amount in excess of 50% of paid-up capital, as on July 1, 2002
attributable to fuel segment, to offset against any future losses or to make investment for expansion or
upgradation. The amount transferred to ‘Special Reserve’ is not available for distribution to the shareholders.
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18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The details of staff retirement benefits are as follows:

Reconciliations of obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status

(Receivable from Gratuity) / Payable to
Pension Fund

Unrecognised net actuarial gain

Recognised liability / (asset)

Movement in liability / (asset)

Liability / (asset) at beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Contribution paid to the fund

Liability / (asset) at end of the year

Charge for the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Net actuarial gain recognised
during the year

Movement in present value of defined
benefit obligations

Opening balance

Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Transfer from Gratuity / (to Pension) Fund

Actuarial loss / (gain)

Present value of defined benefit
obligations at the end of the year

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Opening balance
Expected return
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Transfer from Gratuity / (to Pension) Fund
Fair value of plan assets at the end
of the year

Actual return / (loss) on plan assets

2009 2008
Pension Gratuity Medical Pension Gratuity Medical
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

- (Rupees in thousand) >
2,312,535 53,946 581,215 2,181,529 67,945 553,929
(2,396,530) (62,950) (534,593) (2,128,896) (82,668) (525,739)
(83,995) (9,004) 46,622 52,633 (14,723) 28,190
(24,135) 24,135 - (10,760) 10,760 -
152,875 (14,246) 43,295 197,385 3,935 44,829
44,745 885 89,917 239,258 (28) 73,019
239,258 (28) 73,019 181,675 (28) 55,265
79,045 913 16,898 60,788 1,508 17,754
(273,558) - - (3,205) (1,508) -
44,745 885 89,917 239,258 (28) 73,019
69,771 2,580 13,707 63,820 2,807 13,023
259,223 5,906 66,339 194,571 5,777 54,715
(249,949) (7,573) (63,148) (195,932) (6,789) (49,984)
- - - (1,671) (287) -

79,045 913 16,898 60,788 1,508 17,754
2,181,529 67,945 553,929 1,961,320 56,823 548,940
69,771 2,580 13,707 63,820 2,807 13,023
259,223 5,906 66,339 194,571 5,777 54,715
(118,869) - (13,134) (107,134) - (13,422)
25,166 (25,166) - 11,430 (11,430) -
(104,285) 2,681 (39,626) 57,522 13,968 (49,327)
2,312,535 53,946 581,215 2,181,529 67,945 553,929
2,128,896 82,668 525,739 1,997,522 67,595 499,257
249,949 7,573 63,148 195,932 6,789 49,984
273,558 - - 3,205 1,508 -
(118,869) - (13,134) (107,134) - (13,422)
(148,795) (15,500) (41,160) 38,441 7,706 (10,080)
11,791 (11,791) - 930 (930) -
2,396,530 62,950 534,593 2,128,896 82,668 525,739
101,154 (7,927) 21,988 234,373 14,495 39,904
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Rupees in thousand)
18.6 Historical information
PENSION FUND
As at June 30
Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,312,535 2,181,529 1,961,320 1,811,027 1,751,423
Fair value of plan assets (2,396,530) (2,128,896) (1,997,522) (1,758,226) (1,625,638)
(Surplus) / Deficit (83,995) 52,633 (36,202) 52,801 125,785
Experience loss on obligation (104,285) 57,522 28,890 44,795 223,319
Experience gain on plan assets (148,795) 38,441 161,482 93,238 232,289
GRATUITY FUND
As at June 30
Present value of defined benefit obligation 53,946 67,945 56,823 50,859 46,087
Fair value of plan assets 62,950 82,668 67,595 (52,110) (44,644)
(Surplus) / Deficit 9,004 (14,723) (10,772) (1,251) 1,443
Experience (gain) / loss on obligation 2,681 13,968 (315) (329) 15,306
Experience gain / (loss) on plan assets (15,500) 7,706 9,320 1,263 (2,781)
MEDICAL FUND
As at June 30
Present value of defined benefit obligation 581,215 553,929 548,940 488,747 431,233
Fair value of plan assets (534,593) (525,739) (499,257) (433,941) (408,587)
Deficit 46,622 28,190 49,683 54,806 22,646
Experience (gain) / loss on obligation (39,626) (49,327) 18,373 15,022 17,438
Experience gain / (loss) on plan assets (41,160) (10,080) 41,378 12,927 -
18.7 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:
Pension Gratuity Medical Fund
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Debt Instrument 80.93% 69.07% 79.38% 63.74% 27.17% -
Equity 2.04% 2.02% 3.86% 4.65% 3.18% 4.61%
Mixed funds 14.14% 26.11% 9.68% 13.06% 66.58% 92.16%
Others 2.89% 2.80% 7.08% 18.55% 3.07% 3.23%
18.8 Principal actuarial assumptions
Rate of discount 11% p.a 12% p.a 11% p.a 12% p.a 11% p.a 12% p.a
Expected rate of increment of salary /
increase in cost 10% p.a 11% p.a 11% p.a 12% p.a 8% p.a 9% p.a
Expected rate of increase in pension 4% p.a 5% p.a - - - -
Expected rate of return on assets 11% p.a 12% p.a 11% p.a 12% p.a 11% p.a 12% p.a
Expected retirement age 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years
18.9 The effects of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost trend rate are as follows:
Increase Decrease
(Rupees in thousands)
Effect on the aggregate of current service cost and interest cost 16,094 11,102
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 104,195 82,221
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 60 on
the balance sheet date is as follows:
2009 2008
Years
Male 16.8 16.8
Female 21.2 21.2
18.10 The expected contributions to the plans for the coming year are as follows: (Rupees in thousands)
Pension fund 64,789
Gratuity fund 2,368
Medical fund 19,374
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19.

191

19.2

19.3

2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors
Government of Pakistan 161,793 2,627,871
Other trade creditors:
- Related parties - note 19.1 30,144 63,822
- Others - note 19.2 and 19.3 21,176,825 22,250,221
21,206,969 22,314,043
21,368,762 24,941,914

Mark-up accrued on:

- unsecured customs duty - overdue 310,264 310,264
- secured short-term running finance - 46
- late payment to suppliers - 86,686
Accrued liabilities 541,829 500,013
Retention money 14,266 15,687
Deposits from contractors 18,028 19,760
Advances from customers 339,718 227,273
Workers' profits participation fund - note 19.4 - 74,291
Workers' welfare fund 141,571 289,838
Income tax deducted at source 9,321 10,362
Unclaimed dividend 43,538 37,855
Excise duty and petroleum development levy 235,429 139,219
Others 9,512 9,212
23,032,238 26,662,420

Amounts due to related parties are as follows:
Attock Petroleum Limited 30,144 63,406
The Attock Oil Company Limited = 416
30,144 63,822

This includes Rs. 1.59 billion (2008: Rs. 1.58 billion) representing amount payable in respect of local crude supplies exceeding the
maximum slab rates provided in the respective Crude Oil Sale and Purchase Agreements (COSAs). The Ministry of Petroleum and
Natural Resources (MoP & NR) through its directive dated December 17, 2005, instructed the refineries to withhold such payments
until the matter is resolved among the parties to the above agreements. A directive was issued by MoP & NR dated December 15,
2007, requiring the amounts above the maximum slab rates to be equally distributed to the GoP and Oil Exploration Companies
(E&Ps). Payments of such amounts have again been directed to be withheld through notification dated March 7, 2008, in case E&Ps
do not get the supplement COSAs signed till May 10, 2008. During the year on October 24, 2008, MoP & NR through a notification
communicated that refineries may release to producers and GoP amounts over and above the ceiling limits on provisional basis till
further decision is taken in the matter and subject to retrospective adjustment.

Under the directive of MoP & NR dated May 31, 2006, the amounts being withheld as mentioned above are to be kept at 90 days'
interest bearing deposits, which interest generated is to be paid with the principal amount after the final discount rates are decided
between the parties.

Further, an amount of Rs. 15.20 million (2008: Rs. 739.85 million) has been withheld on account of COSAs not finalised under the
directives of MoP & NR dated December 23, 2006. The amounts withheld are required to be kept at 90 days interest bearing accounts
to be paid with the principal amount as and when COSAs are finalised or as directed by the Government.

Includes an amount of Rs. 280.91 million (2008: Rs. 280.91 million) on account of invoices raised by local crude oil suppliers in respect
of excess discounts given to the Company for the period 1998-99 to 2000-01 consequent to amendment in Master Crude Oil Sale
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and Purchase Agreement. As the benefit of these discounts have been passed on to the Government of Pakistan (GoP), the
Company is of the view that such claim be settled by the GoP directly or the GoP should pay the amount to the Company for onward
settlement with suppliers. The Company is pursuing the matter and is hopeful that the amount will ultimately be settled by GoP.
However, as an abundant caution, liability for the aforementioned amount has been recognised pending acceptance by GoP for
settlement thereof.

2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)
19.4 Workers’ profits participation fund

Payable / (Receivable) at beginning of the year 74,291 (22,646)
Allocation for the year - note 28 151,528 474,291
Interest on funds utilised in the
Company’s business - note 29 8,167 -
233,986 451,645
Less: Amount paid to the Trustees of the Fund 257,458 377,354
(Receivable) / Payable at end of the year (23,472) 74,291
20. PROVISIONS
Duties and taxes - note 20.1 215,214 215,214
Others 86,271 83,355
301,485 298,569

20.1. These represent provisions for:

Claim by the Government - note 20.1.1 165,214 165,214

Sales tax, central excise duty and
penalties - note 20.1.2 50,000 50,000
215,214 215,214

20.1.1 This represents amount claimed by the Government of Pakistan (GoP), alleging that the Company had been
allowed excess refunds in prior years on account of Import Parity Formula. The Company has taken up this
matter with the GoP and is contesting the same.

20.1.2 This represents provision made by the Company in respect of sales tax, central excise duty and penalties,
aggregating to Rs. 50 million, determined by the Collectorate of Customs, Sales Tax and Central Excise
(Adjudication) in 2004 in respect of goods sold by the Company to one of its customer without deduction of sales
tax and central excise duties.

20.2. Reconciliation of provisions

Balance at the beginning of the year 298,569 299,148
Provision / (reversal) due to settlement 2,916 (579)
Balance at the end of the year 301,485 298,569
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21.

21.1.

21.1.1

21.1.2

21.1.3

2114

2115

21.2.

21.21

21.2.2
22,

221

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

A customer of the Company invoked arbitration proceedings against the Company on account of a dispute
resulting from the alleged contamination of certain cargo sold by the Company. The customer and the Company
have appointed their respective arbitrators with no statement of claim filed to date by the customer. Accordingly,
the amount of claim cannot be determined at present.

The Company had filed an appeal with the CIT(A) for the assessment year 2001-2002 in respect of various
disallowances made by the Assessing Officer, of which Rs. 19.10 million remained unresolved. CIT(A) decided the
case in favour of Company and allowed the said disallowances. However, the department has filed an appeal in
this regard before the ITAT.

Outstanding counter guarantees at the end of the year amounted to Rs. 157.30 million (2008: Rs. 108.62 million).
Claims not acknowledged by the company as debt at the end of the year amounted to Rs. 545.84 million (2008:
Rs. 111.55 million). These include claims accumulating to Rs. 404.08 million (2008: Rs. 86.69 million) in respect of
late payment surcharge claimed by a crude oil supplier.

The Company has raised claims on certain Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) in respect of interest on late
payments against receivables aggregating to Rs. 1.24 billion (2008: Rs. 0.25 billion). However, these have not been

recognised in the financial statements as these have not been acknowledged by the OMCs.

Commitments

Commitment for capital expenditures outstanding at the end of the year are as follows:

2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)
CURRENCY
- Foreign currency (US $ 750 thousand) 16,260 13,640
- Pak Rupees 68,317 57,146
84,577 70,786

Outstanding letters of credit at the end of the year amounted to Rs. 6.44 billion (2008: Rs. 16.39 billion).
GROSS SALES

Local - note 22.1 126,687,035 124,753,735
Export 13,425,215 21,479,536
140,112,250 146,233,271

Includes price differential claims from the Government of Pakistan amounting to Rs. 554.26 million (2008: Rs. 1.84
billion).
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23.

24,

241

TRADE DISCOUNTS, TAXES, DUTIES AND LEVIES

Trade discounts

Sales tax

Excise duty

Petroleum development levy

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD

Opening stock of semi-finished products

Crude oil, condensate, naphtha and drums
consumed - note 24.1 and 24.2

Stores, spares and chemicals consumed

Salaries, wages and staff benefits - note 24.3

Staff transport and canteen

Fuel, power and water

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Contract services

Repairs and maintenance

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores,
spares and chemicals

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets - note 4

Health, safety, environment and related cost

Professional charges

Consultancy charges - note 24.4

Pipeline charges

Others

Closing stock of semi-finished products - note 9
Cost of products manufactured

Opening stock of finished products

Closing stock of finished products - note 9

Crude oil, condensate, naphtha and
drums consumed

Crude oil, condensate and naphtha
- Opening stock
- Purchases
- Closing stock

Drums

2009

(Rupees in thousand)

2008

738,681 761,595
16,403,512 13,806,025
1,332,503 1,496,336
12,059,190 783,499
30,533,886 16,847,455
925,522 881,547
101,375,495 116,916,214
457,473 520,239
789,888 803,090
64,201 58,109
1,601,029 1,274,407
33,725 42,192
80,923 69,758
42,218 36,642
143,384 184,395

g 7,231

198,395 209,259
6,215 6,215

2,440 4,746

5,655 4,059
31,860 64,697
3,233 3,546
10,441 8,170
104,846,575 120,212,969
(1,576,437) (925,522)
104,195,660 120,168,994
4,025,955 2,562,021
(3,916,717) (4,025,955)
109,238 (1,463,934)
104,304,898 118,705,060
8,336,814 4,243 852
99,502,904 120,598,663
(6,758,027) (8,336,814)
101,081,691 116,505,701
293,804 410,513
101,375,495 116,916,214
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24.2

24.3

24.4

25.

25.1

26.

26.1

Cost of crude oil consumed in respect of non-finalised Crude Oil Sale Agreements has been recorded

provisionally in line with notifications of the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources.

Includes Rs. 73.62 million (2008: Rs. 60.85 million) and Rs. 22.78 million (2008: Rs. 22.46 million) in respect of

defined benefit and defined contribution plans respectively.

This represents costs incurred on consultancy in respect of designing and other related studies for the installation

of High Speed Diesel Desulphurisation unit.
2009

2008

(Rupees in thousand)

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries and staff benefits - note 25.1 27,379 27,035
Stores, spares and chemicals consumed 9,315 8,068
Commission on local sales 525,750 444 230
Commission on export sales 135,363 215,786
Export expenses 104,515 124,482
Depreciation 14,278 11,802
Repairs and maintenance 11,770 15,191
Postage, telegrams and periodicals 1,925 2,649
Provision for doubtful debts - 21,174
Bad debts - 1,973
Technical Fee - 1,432
Selling expenses 6,916 8,618
Others 6,946 6,568

844,157 889,008

Includes Rs. 2.48 million (2008: Rs. 2.05 million) and Rs. 0.77 million (2008: Rs. 0.76 million) in respect of

defined benefit and defined contribution plans respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and staff benefits - note 26.1 221,152 226,412
Staff transport and canteen 16,903 15,132
Rent, rates and taxes 3,521 6,145
Depreciation 15,658 18,143
Amortisation of intangible assets - note 4 69 -
Legal and professional charges 3,933 13,149
Printing and stationery 5,681 7,136
Repairs and maintenance 59,362 51,507
Telephone and communication 3,926 4,610
Electricity and power 15,941 14,339
Insurance 1,790 1,650
Training and seminar 285 1,356
Postage, telegrams and periodicals 5,326 4,664
Security charges 10,795 6,637
Others 7,313 5,290

371,655 376,170

Includes Rs. 20.76 million (2008: Rs. 17.15 million) and Rs. 6.42 million (2008: Rs. 6.33 million) in respect of

defined benefit and defined contribution plans respectively.
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

27. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return / interest / mark-up on:

- PLS savings and deposit accounts 882,561 734,589
- Secured loans to employees and executives 454 467
Gain on re-measurement of fair value of open ended
mutual fund units 74,442 209,974
Others
Handling and storage income 119,414 198,838
Hospitality charges 11,037 12,123
Provision and liabilities no longer required or
payable, written back 198,094 221,786
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 749 2,938
Sale of scrap and empties 54,965 6,315
Pipeline charges recovered 3,631 5,811
Rental income 5,979 4,234
Tender fees 353 65
Rebate against insurance expense 6,878 7,000
Encashment of bank guarantee 3,803 -
Others 2,788 262
1,365,148 1,404,402
28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' profits participation fund - note 19.4 151,528 474,291
Workers' welfare fund 57,417 180,230
Auditors’ remuneration - note 28.1 3,513 2,498
Donations - note 28.2 2,500 -
214,958 657,019

28.1 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 1,100 750
Taxation services 1,121 854

Fee for review of half yearly financial statements,
special reports and certifications 996 561
Out-of-pocket expenses 296 333
3,513 2,498

28.2 None of the Directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.
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29.

30.

30.1

31.

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term running finance

Mark-up on late payments to suppliers

Interest on workers' profits participation
fund - note 19.4

Exchange loss

Guarantee commission and service charges

Bank charges

TAXATION
Current

- for the year
- for prior years

Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35%
Tax effect of income exempt from tax
Tax effect of expenses not allowed for tax

Effect of tax on export sales under Final Tax Regime

Effect of prior years tax
Tax expense for the year

EARNINGS PER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

Profit after taxation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

(in thousand)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

2009

2008

(Rupees in thousand)

- 46
- 86,945

8,167 -
2,385,068 1,242,919
324 932

829 827
2,394,388 1,331,669
1,024,349 2,917,200
176,170 (88,051)
1,200,519 2,829,149
79,909 (3,289)
1,280,428 2,825,860
2,813,456 8,831,292
984,710 3,090,952
(40,763) (73,491)
5,914 6,214
154,397 (109,764)
176,170 (88,051)
1,280,428 2,825,860
1,533,028 6,005,432
79,967 79,967
19.17 75.10
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2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)
32. CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 2,813,456 8,831,292

Adjustment for non cash charges
and other items:

Depreciation and amortisation 234,615 245,419
Finance cost - 86,991
Provision for gratuity 913 1,508
Provision for post retirement medical benefits 16,898 17,754
Provision for pension 79,045 60,788
Return / interest on bank deposits (882,561) (734,589)
Gain on re-measurement of fair value of open ended

mutual fund units (74,442) (209,974)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (749) (2,938)
Exchange gain on foreign currency

bank accounts (793) (1,957)
Increase in working capital - note 32.1 (7,720,624) (524,209)

(5,534,242) 7,770,085

32.1 (Increase) / Decrease in working capital

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and chemicals (157,518) 23,718
Stock-in-trade 1,037,110 (5,600,871)
Trade debts (4,668,237) (4,042,727)
Loans and advances 25,809 (31,203)
Deposits and short term prepayments 42,122 (52,779)
Other receivables (199,326) (362,221)
Tax refunds due from Government - Sales tax (167,681) 642,343
(4,087,721) (9,423,740)
Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,635,819) 8,900,110
Provisions 2,916 (579)
(7,720,624) (524,209)
33. UNAVAILED CREDIT FACILITIES - as at June 30
Short term running finance - note 33.1 350,000 1,850,000
Letters of credit and guarantee 19,438,184 16,638,615

33.1 Short term running finance

The rates of mark-up onthese finance ranges between 12.42% and 16.02% (2008: 9.81% and 14.39%)
per annum, payable quarterly.

The facilities are secured against joint pari passu charge on the Company’s stocks, receivables and other current
assets.

The purchase prices are repayable on various dates latest by March 31, 2010.
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34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2009 2008
Chief Chief
Executive Executives Executive Executives
- (Rupees in thousand) >
Managerial remuneration 4,380 125,387 4,380 115,113
Bonus 1,820 34,639 2,184 38,622
Retirement benefits 1,310 31,340 1,239 27,734
House rent - 49,168 - 43,763
Conveyance 195 9,658 166 7,642
Leave benefits 416 11,744 416 9,668
8,121 261,936 8,385 242,542
Number of person(s) 1 142 1 126
341 In addition to the above, fee to two non-executive Directors during the year amounted to Rs. 120 thousand (2008:

Rs. 55 thousand).

34.2 The Chairman, Chief Executive and some of the executives of the Company are provided with free use of
Company's cars and additionally, the Chief Executive and executives are also entitled to medical benefits and club
subscriptions in accordance with their terms of service.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

35.1 Financial assets and liabilities

Interest/mark-up bearing Non-interest/mark-up bearing
Maturity Maturity Sub total Maturity Maturity Sub total Total
up to one after one up to one after one
year year year year
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances 2,538 10,861 13,399 11,869 44,218 56,087 69,486
Deposits - - - 13,908 24,068 37,976 37,976
Trade debts 8,814,298 - 8,814,298 6,026,990 - 6,026,990 14,841,288
Accrued interest - - - 91,500 - 91,500 91,500
Other receivables - - - 2,382,583 - 2,382,583 2,382,583
Cash and bank
balances 7,742,076 - 7,742,076 58,003 - 58,003 7,800,079
Fair value through
profit or loss

Investments - - - 197,622 - 197,622 197,622

2009 16,558,912 10,861 16,569,773 8,782,475 68,286 8,850,761 25,420,534

2008 13,788,463 14,225 13,802,688 15,368,279 65,698 15,433,977 29,236,665
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Trade and other
payables 2,801,677 - 2,801,677 19,504,522 - 19,504,522 22,306,199

2009 2,801,677 - 2,801,677 19,504,522 - 19,504,522 22,306,199

2008 3,148,447 - 3,148,447 22,772,990 - 22,772,990 25,921,437
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35.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(i) Capital Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders. The Company manages
its capital through adjusting its dividend policy. Further, as also mentioned in note - 17.2, the company operates
under tariff protection formula for fuel operations whereby profits after tax attributable to fuel segment in excess of
50% of the paid up capital as of July 1, 2002 attributable to fuel segment are diverted to special reserve.

The capital structure of the company is equity based with no financing through long term borrowings.

(i) Concentration of credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed
to perform as contracted. The financial assets that are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 24.70 billion (2008:
Rs. 28.30 billion).
The company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various levels. The Company believes
that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk as it operates in an essential products industry and
has as customers only a few sound organisations.

The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

Loans and advances 69,486 69,635
Deposits 37,976 42,447
Trade debts 3,040,518 6,931,396
Accrued interest 91,500 30,780
Other receivables 2,382,583 2,183,257
Investments 197,622 3,615,359
Cash and bank balances 7,800,079 13,122,136
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(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies
primarily with respect to US Dollar. Financial assets include Rs. 4.91 million (2008: Rs. 17.51 million) and financial
liabilities include Rs. 729.40 million (2008: Rs. 9.85 billion) which are subject to foreign currency risk. The Company
believes that it is not materially exposed to foreign exchange risk as its product prices are linked to the currency
of its imports.

As at June 30, 2009, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10 % against US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, profit after tax for the year would have been lower/higher by Rs. 72.45 million (2008:
Rs. 983 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar-denominated
trade payables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of financing
through banking arrangements.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market
interest rates. As at June 30, 2009 the company does not have any borrowings, hence management believes that
the company is not exposed to interest rate changes.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in open ended mutual funds amounting to
Rs. 197.62 million.

The Company limits price risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments
in open ended mutual funds. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect the open ended
mutual funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The financial information regarding business segments is as follows:

FUEL LUBE TOTAL
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
- (Rupees in thousand) >

Segment Revenue
Sales to external customers
- local, net of discounts,

taxes, duties and levies 66,488,111 (| 81,459,366|| 29,665,038| | 26,446,914|| 96,153,149| | 107,906,280
- export 12,613,155|| 20,736,974 812,060 742,562 || 13,425,215| | 21,479,536

79,101,266 102,196,340 30,477,098 27,189,476 109,578,364 129,385,816
Inter segment sales 21,529,165 21,190,530 - - 21,529,165 21,190,530

Elimination of inter

segment sales - - - - (21,529,165) (21,190,530)
Net sales 100,630,431 123,386,870 30,477,098 27,189,476 109,578,364 129,385,816
Segment results after tax (2,699,059) 3,064,106 4,232,087 2,941,326 1,533,028 6,005,432
Segment assets 29,172,546 30,597,851 10,680,182 13,968,888 39,852,728 44,566,739
Unallocated assets - - - - 2,491,883 2,037,876
Total assets 29,172,546 30,597,851 10,680,182 13,968,888 42,344,611 46,604,615
Segment liabilities 21,752,603 25,478,331 1,716,667 1,794,935 23,469,270 27,273,266
Unallocated liabilities - - - - 1,522,600 1,912,304
Total liabilities 21,752,603 25,478,331 1,716,667 1,794,935 24,991,870 29,185,570

Other Segment Information:

Capital expenditure 7,548 9,556 160,819 65,549 168,367 75,105
Unallocated capital expenditure - - - - 125,530 90,349

7,548 9,556 160,819 65,549 293,897 165,454
Depreciation and amortisation 73,088 90,620 161,527 154,799 234,615 245,419

Non-cash expenses
other than depreciation 5,633 5,918 11,265 11,836 16,898 17,754
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2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
37.1.  The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Associated companies

Sale of petroleum products 32,863,655 30,601,364
Rental income 3,426 2,183
Hospitality charges 11,037 12,123
Handling income 70,796 78,704
Trade discounts and commission on sales 1,399,794 1,421,270
Reimbursement of expenses 3,203 6,274
Purchase of petroleum products 2,559 1,010
Dividend paid 815,659 679,716

Payment made to Prime Minister
Relief Fund through The Attock

Oil Company Limited 2,500 -
Post employment staff
benefit plans
Contributions 127,485 109,604
Others
Purchase of electricity 729,016 693,180
Rental income 449 408
Key management
employees compensation
Salaries and other employee benefits 19,466 20,826
Post retirement benefits 2,162 2,110

37.2. The related party status of outstanding balances as at June 30, 2009 is included in trade debts, other receivables
and trade and other payables.

Annual
designed
throughput Actual throughput
capacity 2009 2008

<«—————— (In Metric Tons) ——>
38. CAPACITY

Fuel section - throughput
of crude oil 2,710,500 2,423,683 2,733,797

Lube section - throughput
of reduced crude oil 620,486 673,666 707,388



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

39.

40.

41,

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of
comparison, the effects of which are not material.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 19, 2009 (i) approved transfer of Rs. 3.2 billion from
unappropriated profit to general reserve; and (ii) proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 12.50 per share for the year
ended June 30, 2009 amounting to Rs. 999.58 million for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on October 19, 2009. These financial statements do not recognise these appropriations which will be
accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2010.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 19, 2009 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Chief Executive Director

National Refinery Limited | 82



Annual Report 2009 | 83

Pattern of Shareholding

NUMBER OF SHARES NUMBER OF NUMBER OF % ON

FROM TO SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD ISSUED
1 100 1289 47,257 0.06
101 100 1158 303,500 0.38

501 1,000 556 409,562 0.51
1,001 5,000 843 1,868,163 234
5,001 10,000 154 1,098,838 137
10,001 15,000 47 582,716 073
15,001 20,000 36 654,903 0.82
20,001 25,000 12 278,800 0.35
25,001 30,000 9 262,088 0.33
30,001 35,000 I 225,290 0.28
35,001 40,000 4 158,500 0.20
40,001 45,000 5 220,336 0.28
45,001 50,000 5 237,666 0.30
50,001 55,000 3 158,800 020
55,001 60,000 5 287,122 0.36
60,001 65,000 1 60,920 0.08
65,001 70,000 2 136,039 0.17
70,001 75,000 1 72,078 0.09
£0,001 85,000 3 251,397 0.31
85,001 90,000 1 88,300 0.11
80,001 95,000 2 185,800 0.23
95,001 100,000 2 197,256 0.25
105,001 110,000 2 213,500 0.27
110,001 115,000 1 110,400 0.14
115,001 120,000 2 235,700 0.29
120,001 125,000 1 124,000 0.16
135,001 140,000 1 136,500 0.17
145,009 150,000 2 300,000 0.38
150,001 165,000 1 152,400 0.19
165,001 170,000 1 168,460 0.21
170,001 175,000 1 175,000 0.22
190,001 195,000 1 183,500 0.24
220,001 225,000 1 222,525 0.28
230,001 235,000 2 465,200 0.58
235,001 240,000 1 238,800 0.30
240,001 245,000 1 242,900 0.30
245,001 250,000 1 246,000 0.31
270,001 275,000 1 272,371 0.34
315,001 320,000 1 315,680 0.39
330,001 335,000 1 334,691 0.42
335,001 340,000 1 361,738 0.45
455,001 460,000 1 455,400 0.57
480,001 486,000 1 484,900 0.61
505,001 510,000 2 1,019,062 1.27
795,001 800,000 1 789,665 1.00
1,005,001 1,010,000 1 1,005,900 1.26
3,170,001 3,175,000 1 3,173,883 397
4,065,001 4,070,000 1 4,069,502 5.09
4,660,001 4,685,000 1 4,680,392 5.85
11,995,001 12,000,000 1 12,000,000 15.00
19,990,001 18,995,000 2 39,883,280 50.00

%

79,866,560 100.00




Categories of Shareholdings

Categorles Number of
Shareholders
Associated Companies 2
Individuals 3,976
Investment Companies 4
Joint Stock Companies 20
NIT & ICP 10
Banks, Ingurance, Modaraba, Mutual & Provident / Pension Funds 22
Foreign Investors 18
Charitable Trust 12
Others 47
480
INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Assoclated Companles 2
NIT & ICP
IDBP {ICP UNIT) 1
National Investment Trust 3
National Bank of Pakistan Trustee Department 1
NBP Trustee - NI(U)T (LOC) Fund 1
National Bank of Pakistan 2
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 2

Chlet Executive Officer, Director,
their spouse and minor children

Dr. Ghaith R. Pharaon

Laith G. Pharaon

Wael G, Pharaon

Shuaib A. Malik

Abdus Sattar

Executive 10
Public Sector Companies 20
Banks, Insurance, Modaraba, Mutual & Provident / Pension Funds
Non-Banking Financial Institutions: 172
Shareholders hokding 10%

or more voting interest

Attock Refinery Limited 25%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited 25%
Islamic Development Bank, Jeddah 15%
NIT & ICP 12%

Number of % on
Shares heid Issued
39,583,280 50.00
6,950,640 8.69
21,838 0.03
1,243,773 1.56
9,269,514 11.59
18,552,910 24.45
2,084,009 262
140,865 0.18
709,731 0.89
79966560 ___100.00

39,983,280

339

518,764

4,680,392

4,089,502

51

466

1

1

1

2

601

732

1,243,773

22,519,353

19,991,640

19,991,840

12,000,000

9,268,997
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NATIONAL REFINERY LIMITED
46th Annual General Meeting

Form of Proxy

Folio No. arndior CDC Participant |.D. No. CDC Afc. Na.

We of

being a member(s) of National Refinery Limied hoding ordinary shares HEREBY APPCHMNT
ol also a mamber of National Refinery Limited.

Folio No. { or taling hirmvher ol _ also a member ol Natonal

Refinery Lid, Foiio No. } as my / our proxy 1o vole for me / us and on my / our benall at the 46th Annual General

Meating of the of Nationz! Fefinery Limiled., to be held at 4:00 p.m. on Monday , October 19, 2009 and at any adjournment iherect,

Signed by the sakd Member
Affi
Revenue
Stamp of
Rs, 5/-
As witness my/our hand(s) tris day of 2009.

Signed in the presence of:

1. Signature 2. Signature
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC/Passport No. CNIC/Passport No.
Notes:

1. A mernger entithed 1o atterd and vote at Annual Genaral Mesling is entithed 1o appoint a proxy lo attend and vole instead of himher.
No person shall act as proxy, whe is not a member of the Company except corporate entity may appoint a person who is nol a
member,

2. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, together with Board Resolution / Power of Attorney, il any, under which it is signed or a
notanally cerfified copy thereof, should ba caposited, with our Registrar, M/s, Noble Cemputer Senvices (Pvi.) Lid. Mezzanine Floor,
Housa of Mabib Buikding (Siddigsons Tower), 3 - Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, telephona No.
4325482-87, not later than 48 Hours before the time of holding the meeting.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signad by the member or histher attorney duly authorized in writing. If the member is &
corparmte entity its commeon seal should be affsd on the instrument.

4. Any alteration made in this instrumen? of proxy shouid be inifialled by the person who signs it.

5. Aftested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the proxy shall ba provided with the proxy form,

6. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxies are deposited by a member with the Company,
all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

7. Inthe case of joint holders the vole of the semior who tenders a vole whether in person or by Proxy will be accepted to the exclusion
of the votes of the othar joint holders, and lor this purpese seniornty will be delermined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Mem:bars.

8. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.
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